
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




Director’s Report 
August 2022 


Riverfront Project 


- I had a progress meeting for the Riverwalk on July 27. The contractor informed us that the steel 
for the bridge has not been milled. The project is on hold until the remediation on the Millfab 
and DPW sites is taken care of.  


- I’m still waiting for updated cost estimates from REP for the River Park. They were waiting on 
Strand to provide costs for electrical (Strand’s electrical engineer has been on vacation).  


- Public notice letters have been sent by the Army Corps of Engineers to upstream riparian 
property owners. This is part of the permitting process for the 404 Clean Water permit. 


- I was looking into ways to help pay for marketing the River Park. Darren Bush from Rutabaga 
told me to look into JEM grants from the WI Department of Tourism.  
I reached out to their grants coordinator and setup a meeting for August 10. The JEM grant 
program has a Destination Marketing grant that I thought would be a good fit, but it’s centered 
on bringing people to a region during the shoulder seasons. We could possibly co-op with other 
outdoor recreation based attractions.   
A better fit for us is their New Event grant. This would help us get a river festival started. It 
provides 75% funding the first year, 50% for the second year, and 25% for the third year. The 
maximum award is $39,550.  


- We don’t have any drawings of the entire project area nor the features. I reached out to Blake 
Theisen who did the drawings for the Riverwalk and Doug Hursh from Potter-Lawson (Curt 
Brink’s team) to get costs. I’m waiting to hear back from them. The drawings are needed to help 
promote the area. We should have a booth at Canoecopia this coming spring to start getting the 
word out to recreational paddlers. Booth materials (backdrop, table, chairs, table cover, and 
printed materials) should be under $4,000.  


- I had a progress meeting for the Riverwalk on August 10. The contractor is still waiting for the 
bridge to be made. He said the best case scenario for delivery is the end of September now. 
They will be processing a change order for completion date and changing it to May 2023. This is 
due to the remediation timeline for the redevelopment site. We received an extension on our 
grants until the end of June 2023.  


Virgin Lake Trail 


- I had a progress meeting with MSA. They were in hold mode until the geotechnical report came 
back.  


- Director Scheel informed me that Roby Rd would be getting re-done in 2023. Due to the new 
trail alignment going through Virgin Lake Park, they would put a new curb cut in where the trail 
crossing would be for the road project.  


51 West Master Plans  


- MSA attended the July 28th Gazebo Musikk to gain additional public input.  They presented the 
two drafts of each park.  


Recreation & Youth Center  


- The first movie night was on July 29. We partnered with the Library to run the events to share 
the staffing workload. The movie on July 29 was Lego Batman and the Library made the movie 







Director’s Report 
August 2022 


interactive which was well received. There were about 150 people there. We expect the crowds 
to increase as the word gets out and the movies start earlier (they start at dusk).  


- Gazebo Musikk continues to see crowds of 300-350 people. Tom Veek is the head volunteer of 
the friends group and puts a lot of effort into the events.  


- I completed the annual report for the Youth Center. This is needed by the County for funding.  
- I completed the monthly report for the Youth Center.  


Misc.  


- I met with MSA on July 22 to discuss the “South Loop” Trail through Lowell Park. The trail would 
transverse through a large area that are wetland indicators which will require a wetland 
delineation. This will be determine if and how much boardwalk is needed. The trail is an 
essential link to the south to the Mandt Park/River Park area.  
 


  
- I had a meeting with Cummins volunteers on July 27. They will be working on utilizing the 


remaining boardwalk and providing a viewing platform on the River Trail near the Osprey 
interpretive sign.  


- The bike pump and repair station have been delivered.  
- Holly Salimes started working for us in the Rec Assistant position. She is doing a great job and 


will be missed when she leaves in September to go back to UW-L.  
- I was on vacation the week of August 1st.  
- We received a proposal from Hunden Strategic Partners to complete a Sports, Recreation, and 


Aquatics Market, Financial Feasibility, and Economic Impact Study. The study will perform a 
needs assessment to see if the City needs a sports complex, and recreational and aquatics 
amenities. Based on the findings they will determine what is financially feasible; both start-up 
costs and operationally. This is needed because of the community park that is planned in the 
Linnerud/Stoughton Trailer property. It’s different than a CORP in that it is more financial driven 
and specific.  







Director’s Report 
August 2022 


- I had a meeting with the cell tower company on June 11. We toured the area where the cell 
tower would be placed and they are hopeful that it will work. They will complete a wetland 
delineation for the area. If they do place the cell tower there, they would fix the road leading to 
it. There are tree roots that have broken through the asphalt.  


- We received the grant contract from WisDOT for the River Trail planning.  


 


 
















ECRM715181  Rev 2  05/18 


 
 
The undersigned City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, a municipal corporation, 
(hereinafter called the "Grantor"), in consideration of the sum of one dollar ($1.00) and 
other good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, does 
hereby grant, unto Wisconsin Power and Light Company, a Wisconsin corporation, 
(hereinafter called the “Grantee”), the Grantee’s successors and assigns, a license to 
construct, install, maintain, operate, repair, inspect, replace, add, relocate and remove 
the Designated Facilities, as defined below, and in accordance with the terms and 
limitations of this Easement, upon, in, over, through and across lands owned by the 
Grantor in the City of Stoughton, County of Dane, State of Wisconsin, said “License 
Area” to be six (6) feet in width and described as follows: 
 
See Exhibit “A” for a legal description and Exhibit “B” for a depiction of the 
Easement Area, both attached hereto and made a part hereof.  


This license ( “License”) is subject to the following conditions: 


1. Designated Facilities:  This License is for underground natural gas line facilities, 
including but not limited to pipelines with valves, main and service laterals, and any 
other components as Grantee may select for use in the transmission and distribution 
of natural gas products, none of which to be placed above ground  (the “Designated 
Facilities”).   


2. Access:  The Grantee and its agents shall have the right of reasonable ingress and 
egress to, over and across the Grantor’s land adjacent to the License Area.   


3. Buildings and Structures: The Grantor agrees within the License Area not to construct or place buildings, structures, or other 
improvements, or place water, sewer or drainage facilities; all without the express prior written consent of the Grantee.  Excluded from 
this condition is that the Grantor shall retain the right to construct a gravel or paved path over and within the License Area.   


4. Landscaping and Vegetation:  No trees are allowed within the License Area that will interfere with the permissions herein granted.  
The Grantee has the right to maintain the vegetation within the License Area without replacement or compensation hereinafter.   


5. Elevation:  After the installation of the facilities and final grading of the License Area, the Grantor agrees not to reduce grade of the 
existing ground surface by more than twelve (12) inches or place rocks or boulders more than eight (8) inches in diameter, within the 
License Area, without the express prior written consent of the Grantee.  


6. Restoration and Damages:  The Grantee shall restore or cause to have restored, crops, fences, livestock, lawns, roads, fields and 
field tile (other than trees trimmed or cut down and removed), caused by the construction, maintenance or removal of said Designated 
Facilities.  


7. Rights not granted to the Grantee:  The Grantee shall not have the right to construct or place fences, buildings or any other 
facilities other than the above Designated Facilities. 


8. Reservation of use by the Grantor:  The right is hereby expressly reserved to the Grantor, its, successors and assigns, of every use 
and enjoyment of said land within the License Area consistent with permissions herein granted. 


9. Binding Effect:  This agreement is binding upon the successors and assigns of the parties hereto, and shall run with the lands 
described herein; however, this License shall not be recorded with the Register of Deeds. 


 


 


 


 


 


  
LICENSE NATURAL GAS 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DO NOT RECORD 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
 


Document No. 


Name and Return Address: 


  Alliant Energy 
  Attn:  Real Estate Department 
  4902 North Biltmore Lane 
  Madison, WI 53707 


Parcel Identification Number(s) 
281/0511-081-9320-5 
 







ECRM715181  Rev 2  05/18 


10. Relocation.  Grantee shall remove its Designated Facilities from the License Area and this License shall terminate if Grantor 
determines, in its sole discretion, that the Designated Facilities within the License Area conflict with Grantor’s development plans for 
Mandt Park.  Upon such determination by Grantor, Grantor shall provide Grantee with a written notice to relocate its Designated 
Facilities.  Grantor shall have 120 days after delivery of such notice to remove the Designated Facilities from the License Area.   


11. Term.  This License shall continue for so long as the Designated Facilities are in use, but in no event for longer than 50 years after 
the date this License is executed.  In the event and to the extent that the Facilities are removed, no longer in use or abandoned then 
this License shall terminate.   


[Signatures on Following Page.] 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 







ECRM715181  Rev 2  05/18 


WITNESS the signature(s) of the Grantor this ____________________ day of ____________________, 20______. 
City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, a municipal corporation 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________(SEAL) _____________________________________________(SEAL) 
Signature       Signature 


       
_________________________________________________  _________________________________________________ 
Printed Name and Title      Printed Name and Title 


 
_____________________________________________(SEAL) _____________________________________________(SEAL) 
Signature       Signature 


       
___________________________________________________ ___________________________________________________ 
Printed Name and Title      Printed Name and Title 


 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 


 
STATE OF WISCONSIN   ) 
 )  SS 
COUNTY OF DANE   ) 
 
Personally came before me this ______________ day of ____________________, 20______, the above named _________________ 
 
___________________________________________________________________________________________________________  
to me known to be the person(s) who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same. 
 
 


_________________________________________________________ 
Signature of Notary 
 
_________________________________________________________ 
Printed Name of Notary 
 
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin 
 
My Commission Expires (is) __________________________________ 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 
This instrument drafted by  
 
Jordan R. Oosterhouse 
___________________________________ 
 
John Bresnahan 
___________________________________ 
Checked by 
 
August 12, 2022 


Project Title: PZ0814 Yahara River 6P Crossing at Mandt Park 


ERP Activity ID: 4107659 


Tract No.: 1 of 1 


REROW No.:  







ECRM715181  Rev 2  05/18 


Exhibit A 
 
A License Area six (6) feet in width, lying six (3) feet on each side of the following described 
reference line:  
 
Commencing at the North Quarter (N 1/4) corner of Section 8, Township 5 North, Range 11 East, 
City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin; 
thence South 89°50’42” East, 1815.84 feet along the North line of the Northeast Quarter (NE 1/4) 
of said Section 8; 
thence South 00°09’18” West, 2125.95 feet to the Point of Beginning; 
thence South 38°01’16” West, 83.20 feet; 
thence South 84°09’38” West, 125.91 feet; 
thence North 79°26’27” West, 548.40 feet; 
thence North 60°04’09” West, 400.21 feet more or less to the easterly right-of-way of South 4th 
Street and there terminating.  
 
Also, a temporary construction license forty (40) feet in width, lying twenty (20) feet on each side 
of the following described reference line: 
 
Commencing at the North Quarter (N 1/4) corner of Section 8, Township 5 North, Range 11 East, 
City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin; 
thence South 89°50’42” East, 1815.84 feet along the North line of the Northeast Quarter (NE 1/4) 
of said Section 8; 
thence South 00°09’18” West, 2125.95 feet to the Point of Beginning; 
thence South 38°01’16” West, 83.20 feet; 
thence South 84°09’38” West, 125.91 feet; 
thence North 79°26’27” West, 548.40 feet; 
thence North 60°04’09” West, 400.21 feet more or less to the easterly right-of-way of South 4th 
Street and there terminating.  
 
The temporary construction license shall automatically expire upon completion and restoration of 
the initial construction of the gas line intended for this license.  
 
Grantor’s deed recorded March 31, 1998, as Document Number 2949961, in the office of the 
Register of Deeds for Dane County, Wisconsin. 
 
The sidelines of the above described License Areas shall be prolonged or shortened to end at 
the property lines that are intersected by the above described reference line and the side lines of 
the License Area at angle points are lengthened or shortened to end at their succeeding and 
preceding side margins in order to form a continuous License Area and to match the depiction on 
Exhibit “B”. 
 
Located in part of the Southwest Quarter (SW 1/4) of the Northeast Quarter (NE 1/4) and the 
Southeast Quarter (SE 1/4) of the Northeast Quarter (NE 1/4) of Section 8, Township 5 North, 
Range 11 East, City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin.  
 
 


 
 25984180.3 







P
A


T
H


P
A


T
H


P
I


C
K
L
E


B
A
L
L
 


C
O


U
R
T
S


S
O


U
T


H
 


4
 
 
 


S
T


R
E


E
T


TRACTOR PULLING SITE


MANDT PARKWAY


R
 /
 W


APPROX. EDGE OF WATER


MANDT PARK


P.O.B. 


T5N, R11E, CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


PART OF SW 1/4 - NE 1/4, AND THE SE 1/4 - NE 1/4, SECTION 8, 


EXHIBIT B


SECTION 8


OF 


NORTH 1/4


R
E
F


E
R


E
N


C
E
 


T
I


E


P.O.C. 


2
1
2
5
.9


5
'


S
0
0
°
0
9
'1


8
"W


S89°50'42"E    1815.84'


N


purposes and thus may only be relied upon for such purpose.


This drawing shall be used solely for easement description


File:


WP&L UTILITY EASEMENT MAP


CITY OF STOUGHTON


PROPERTY OWNER / EASEMENT GRANTOR:then drawing is not to scale.


If this bar does not measure 1"


1" = 120' Scale:


TJTDrawn:


SHEET


07/15/2022Date:


 1OF1 


60 1200


SCALE: 1" = 120'


COURSE TABLE


D - E


C - D


B - C


A - B


N60°04'09"W     400.21'


N79°58'26"W     548.40'


S84°09'38"W     125.91'


S38°01'16"W       83.20'


M


M


M


M


NORTH LINE OF NORTHEAST ¼ OF SECTION 8


T
H


A


C


D


E


S
O


U
T


H
 


4
 
 
 


S
T


R
E


E
T


T
H


P
A


T
H


S
O


U
T


H
 


4
 
 
 


S
T


R
E


E
T


R
 /
 W


Parcel No. 051108193205


M


M


M


M


T
H


SCHOOLS


PUBLIC 


STOUGHTON 


6
'


3
'


EASEMENT DETAIL


NOT TO SCALE


LEGEND:


STORM SEWER MANHOLE


FIRE HYDRANT


EASEMENT CENTERLINE


UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC


SEWER 


WATER MAIN 


CHAIN LINK FENCE


PLSS SECTION LINE


TICKET'S No. 20211709416 & No. 20222223636


SURVEYED BASED ON DIGGERS HOTLINE 


ALL UNDERGROUND SHOWN ON MAP ARE 


M


M


M


B
U
I


L
D
I


N
G


B
U
I


L
D
I


N
G


B


YAHARA RIVER







Parcel Number: 051108193205


MANDT PARK


P
a
rc


e
l 


N
u


m
b


e
r:


 0
5


1
1


0
8


1
9


7
9


5
2


S
T


O
U


G
H


T
O


N
 P


U
B


L
IC


 S
C


H
O


O
L


S


P
l
o
t
t
e
d
:$


D
A


T
E


$


$
F


I
L


E
$


F
il


e
:


REVISIONNO. DATE APV'D


DWG. NO.


disclaims all warranties, both


expressed and implied.  Use by


anyone other than Alliant Energy


is at their own risk.


CONFIDENTIAL


These documents are for the use


of Alliant Energy.  Alliant Energy


CHK'DBY
   


THEN DRAWING IS NOT TO SCALE


IF SCALE DOES NOT MEASURE 1"


20 400


SCALE: 1" = 40'


GAS ENGINEERING


WISCONSIN POWER AND LIGHT COMPANY  


MANDT PARK


STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


 


PROJECT SCOPE MAP


      


      


      


      


      


0    PROJECT WORKING MAP07/19/2022


6
'


3
'


EASEMENT DETAIL


NOT TO SCALE


LEGEND:


STORM SEWER MANHOLE


FIRE HYDRANT


EASEMENT CENTERLINE


UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC


SEWER 


WATER MAIN 


CHAIN LINK FENCE


PLSS SECTION LINE


TICKET'S No. 20211709416 & No. 20222223636


SURVEYED BASED ON DIGGERS HOTLINE 


ALL UNDERGROUND SHOWN ON MAP ARE 


M


N
T5N, R11E, CITY OF STOUGHTON, DANE COUNTY, WISCONSIN


PART OF SW 1/4 - NE 1/4, AND THE SE 1/4 - NE 1/4, SECTION 8, 


P
A


T
H


P
A


T
H


T
H


S
O


U
T


H
 


4
 
 
 


S
T


R
E


E
T


YAHARA RIVER


MANDT PARKWAY


APPROX. EDGE OF WATER


M


M


M


M


M


P
IC


K
L
E
B


A
L
L
 C


O
U


R
T
S


M


R
 /
 W


TRACTOR PULLING SITE





		Alliant Memo

		City of Stoughton Gas License 7.18 Clean

		MANDT PARK GAS EASEMENT 7-15-2022

		MANDT PARK WORKING 7-19-2022






 
 
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON  
Tuesday, July 19, 2022 at 6:00 pm  
This meeting was done virtually.  
 


In-Person Option: Stoughton Council Chambers (321 S. Fourth Street)  
 
Virtual Option: Join Zoom Meeting Virtual Option:  
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/87360651956?pwd=Y3FSSDlxeWRPWEdPcElQcVlESE15 QT09 


 


 
Present: Alderpersons: Phil Caravello, Regina Hirsch, Joyce Tikalsky, Frank Raff, Jim Brandt, Ethan 
Scheiwe, Mayor Tim Swadley and Parks & Recreation Director Dan Glynn  
 
Guest: Steve Tremlett, Emma Wenman, Daniel Schmitt, Rob Hostrawser 
Meeting called to order at 6:09 pm.  
 
Approval of Minutes from June 21, 2022  
Motion to approve the Minutes from June 21, 2022 by Brandt, seconded by Caravello  
 
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Communication-none 
Directors Report-Director Glynn will review at next meeting  
 
Magnolia Springs Park Site Selection 
Motion to recommend to city council approval of Magnolia Springs Park Concept Plan; to include a 
minimum of 9k sq. ft. of flat land space for future parkland equipment and to preserve native trees, by 
Hirsch, seconded by Caravello  
 
Motion carried unanimously 
 
Park Design Guidelines-will review at next meeting 
 
51 West Parks Master Plan Concept Review- Daniel Schmitt from MSA gave an overview of  51 West 
Parks Master Plan Concepts and process for east and west side. 
 
CIP Items- Director Glynn provided an overview of potential CIP requests. Discussed adding Hwy 51 
underpass and Jefferson St. Bridge 
 
Future Agenda Items 
 
Bicycle Federation logo promotion 
Park Design Guidelines  
Bike Repair Station 
 
Motion to adjourn by Hirsch seconded by Caravello 
Motion carried unanimously at 8:16 pm 








 


 


 


 


City of Stoughton 


Park Design Guidelines 


Updated 6-22-22 
  







 


Contents 
Overview ....................................................................................................................................................... 4 


Purpose ..................................................................................................................................................... 4 


Mission Statement .................................................................................................................................... 4 


Goals ......................................................................................................................................................... 4 


General Planning and Design Policies ........................................................................................................... 4 


Site Selection and Planning Principles .......................................................................................................... 5 


Park Design and Development Guidelines .................................................................................................... 5 


Community Parks ...................................................................................................................................... 6 


Description ............................................................................................................................................ 6 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ............................................................................................ 6 


Features & Amenities to Consider ........................................................................................................ 6 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ............................................................................................................. 7 


Neighborhood Parks ................................................................................................................................. 7 


Description ............................................................................................................................................ 7 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ............................................................................................ 7 


Features & Amenities to Consider ........................................................................................................ 7 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ............................................................................................................. 8 


Mini Parks ................................................................................................................................................. 8 


Description ............................................................................................................................................ 8 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ............................................................................................ 8 


Features & Amenities to Consider ........................................................................................................ 8 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ............................................................................................................. 8 


Special-Use Parks ...................................................................................................................................... 8 


Description ............................................................................................................................................ 8 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ............................................................................................ 8 


Features & Amenities to Consider ........................................................................................................ 9 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ............................................................................................................. 9 


Trail Corridors & Greenways ..................................................................................................................... 9 


Description ............................................................................................................................................ 9 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines ............................................................................................ 9 


Features & Amenities to Consider ........................................................................................................ 9 


Features & Amenities to Avoid ........................................................................................................... 10 







 


Natural Areas .......................................................................................................................................... 10 


Description .......................................................................................................................................... 10 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines .......................................................................................... 10 


Features and Amenities to Consider ................................................................................................... 10 


Features and Amenities to Avoid ........................................................................................................ 11 


Guidance for Developers ............................................................................................................................ 11 


Design and Review Process for City Parks .............................................................................................. 11 


Site Evaluation Report ............................................................................................................................ 13 


Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting .......................................................................................... 14 


Minimum Criteria ................................................................................................................................ 14 


Base Criteria ........................................................................................................................................ 14 


Bonus Criteria ...................................................................................................................................... 15 


 


  


  







 


Overview  
Purpose 
The purpose of this document is to provide direction to staff, landscape architects, contractors and 
developers in the design, construction, and maintenance of public parks, open space, trails, and 
recreation facilities in the City of Stoughton. The guidelines will be used as a tool in evaluating 
submittals for all new parks and any significant changes to parks.  


Only improvements where Stoughton Parks and Recreation and/or Stoughton Public Works will assume 
operations and maintenance activities are subject to these guidelines.   


Mission Statement  
The City of Stoughton seeks to provide a park and recreation system that will: meet the needs of our 
current residents and future generations; preserve and protect the City’s open space, water, historical 
and natural resources; and provide a park and recreation program that is designed to enhance our 
quality of life.  


Goals 
• Provide guidance to developers for park site selection and development 
• Create a standard for parks, park equipment, and amenities 


General Planning and Design Policies 
The following policies are intended to provide guidance on the planning and design of all parks and 
recreation facilities in Stoughton: 


• Incorporate public input into park master planning and design to ensure that community needs 
and issues are addressed. Public outreach should include nearby neighbors, likely park users, 
community members, and partner agencies in the park design process. 


• Involve maintenance and recreation program staff in the design process so that maintenance 
and programming requirements are considered during site selection, design, and development. 


• Consider the layout of the surrounding neighborhood when placing park amenities. Situate 
lighting and noise-producing amenities away from the neighboring homes to minimize conflicts.  


• Locate amenities such as playground equipment, picnic shelters, and basketball courts to 
provide visibility from adjoining streets which will promote safety, minimize vandalism, and 
encourage use.  


• Incorporate American with Disabilities Act Accessibility Guidelines into all new parks to facilitate 
site access, circulation, and facility use for people of all ages and abilities.  


• Incorporate new technologies, sustainable design, and conservation-smart elements into all 
park and recreation facility designs to facilitate operational efficiency. This commitment may be 
demonstrated through the use of green building technologies, alternative power, low water-use 
fixtures, automated sport field lighting, and storm water treatment techniques. 


• Incorporate public art and interpretive elements into parks to contribute to park identity and 
character. Interpretative elements can be incorporated into parks of all types to raise 
community awareness about the local environment and history. Art elements are well-suited for 
community parks, citywide parks, urban open space, or other community-serving areas. 







 


• Conduct a cost impact analysis prior to design and development of all new major recreation 
facilities. 


Site Selection and Planning Principles  
Consistency  


Choose park and trail locations that are consistent with the spirit and intent of the Department’s 
Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, with the City’s Comprehensive Plan, and with other policies 
and plans adopted by City Council.  


Environmental Protection  


Locate parks and open spaces in coordination with surrounding new developments, where reasonable, 
to preserve and protect the water quality and wildlife habitat of riparian corridors, wetlands, and flood 
plains and to integrate preserved open space and natural areas into developed areas for both visual 
diversity and the definition of neighborhood character. Protect and enhance natural resources that have 
outstanding recreation, conservation and educational value to the public.  


Accessibility and Connectivity  


Connections are the key to creating an open space system that integrates all parts of the city into a 
cohesive whole. Benefits of trail development range from the preservation of linear open spaces to the 
promotion of active, healthy lifestyles to the creation of an alternative corridor for transportation. 
Ideally, parks and open space should be physically connected to provide continuous ribbons of green 
space woven throughout the city, maximizing value to wildlife and, where appropriate, to commuters 
and recreational users.  


1. Residents should be able to leave their homes and readily access the parks and open space 
system in their neighborhoods 


2. Design bicycle and pedestrian transportation systems for efficiency and connectivity around all 
parks and open spaces.  


Park Design and Development Guidelines  
Park design and development guidelines are provided for each park classification. These guidelines 
include the following for each classification: 


Description 


A definition is presented to describe each park type. This section also describes the typical length of use 
and means of travel to each type of park. 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 


Include recommendations for site size, site access, street frontage, parking, etc. 


Features & Amenities to Consider 


These elements should be considered during the master planning and design process for inclusion in all 
new parks of this classification.  







 


Features and Amenities to Consider and Avoid 


These elements are not compatible with the park classification and should not be included in the design 
and development of these types of parks.  


 


Community Parks  
Description 
Community parks are areas of diverse recreational activity and serve several neighborhoods. Community 
parks are typically 10 acres or larger but may vary depending on facilities offered.  


Typical community park users: 


• Come from within 1 to 2 miles of the park; 
• Arrive by auto, bicycle, or foot; and  
• Visit the park for 1 to 3 hours 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• At least two-thirds of the site should be available for active recreation use. Adequate buffers or 


natural open space areas should separate active recreation use from homes.  
• The site should be visible from adjoining streets and have a minimum of 50% of street frontage. 
• Parking requirements should be based upon the facilities provided at the site. Generally, 50 off-


street spaces per ballfield are required, plus an additional 5 spaces per acre of active use areas.  
• Access to the site should be provided via a collector or arterial street with sidewalks and bicycle 


lanes, and trail corridor or greenway system when possible.   


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Playgrounds  
• Open turf area for unstructured play 
• Designated sports fields for baseball, softball, and soccer. Fields may be in a complex within the 


park.  
• Looped pathway system 
• Large picnic shelters 
• Permanent restrooms  
• Tennis and Pickleball courts. Courts may be in a complex within the park.  
• Basketball courts 
• Field lighting 
• Skate park 
• Splash pad  
• Off-leash dog area 
• Community gardens  
• Concessions or vendor space  
• Interpretive signage 
• Public art 
• Indoor recreation center 







 


• Landscape improvements including tree planting  
• Storage or maintenance buildings; if visible, these should be architecturally compatible with 


other park elements. Any exterior work areas should be screened from view.  
• Off-Street Parking  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
• N/A 


 


Neighborhood Parks  
Description 
Neighborhood parks serve a variety of age groups within a limited area or neighborhood. Neighborhood 
parks typically include areas for active recreational use such as field or court games and playgrounds. 
Typical size is between 3 to 10 acres. 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• At least 50% of site should be relatively level and usable providing space for both active and 


passive uses.  
• The site should be visible from adjoining streets and have a minimum of 50% of street frontage. 
• Access to the site should be provided via local street with sidewalks and trail corridor/greenway 


system when possible. Neighborhood parks fronting on arterial streets should be discouraged.  
• On-street parking should be provided. Larger sites may include off-street parking with the 


amount depending on the facilities provided at the site.  
• Active and noise producing facilities, such as basketball courts, should be located at least 100 


feet from nearby homes or property zoned for residential use.  
• Each neighborhood is different and some consideration to making neighborhood parks different 


is important.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Playgrounds  
• Open turf area for unstructured play 
• Basketball (full or half) court 
• Volleyball court 
• Multi-use fields for practice  
• Picnic tables 
• Small picnic shelter  
• Pathway connecting park elements  
• Interpretive signage  
• Natural area (if present at site) 
• Portable or permanent restrooms  
• Landscape improvements including tree planting  
• On-street parking 


 







 


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
• Horticulture or annual plantings unless sponsored and maintained by a neighborhood or 


community group 
• Indoor recreation center  
• Wading pools and similar types of amenities that require staff supervision or highly specialized 


maintenance  
• Sports fields for league play  
• Off-street parking  


 


Mini Parks  
Description 
Mini parks are used to address limited, isolated, or unique recreation needs of concentrated populations 
such as tots or senior citizens. Typical size is 1 acre or less but parks may be categorized as mini parks 
simply based on the type and quantity of facilities they offer.  


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• All or most of site should be relatively level providing space for both active and passive uses.  
• The site should have at least 25% of park boundary on street frontage.  
• Access to the site should be provided via local street with sidewalks.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Open air shelter or small event space 
• Children’s playground including specialized play equipment such as tot lots  
• Half basketball court  
• Community garden 
• Landscape improvements including tree planting  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
• Off-street parking 
• Permanent restrooms  


 


Special-Use Parks  
Description  
Special use parks are areas for specialized or single purpose recreational activities such as golf courses, 
campgrounds, nature centers, and skate parks. They may also be used to designate areas that are 
primarily used as event space, general gathering areas, expanded trail corridors, or plaza space. There 
are no set standards for size.  


Site Selection & Development Guidelines  
• Site size depends on intended use, but should be sufficient to accommodate the special use and 


necessary support facilities.  
• Access to the site should generally be provided by means of a collector arterial street.  







 


• The site should connect to trail corridors if possible 


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Special use facility or facilities  
• Portable or permanent restrooms (depending on facilities and anticipated amount of site use) 
• Landscape improvements including tree planting  
• On-street or off-street parking  
• Pathway system 
• Seating  


Features & Amenities to Avoid  
• Uses that conflict or detract from the special use 


 


Trail Corridors & Greenways  
Description 
Trail corridors and greenways include developed, landscaped corridors and more natural, less-
developed greenways that follow linear features such as abandoned railroad rights-of-way, canals, 
power lines, creeks and streams, and other elongated features. 


Typical trail and greenway users: 


• May come from throughout the city; 
• Arrive by auto, bicycle, or foot; 
• May use the trail and greenway to travel to a park or other community site; and  
• May visit the trail for one or more hours 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• Trail corridors should generally follow continuous special feature strips, with a minimum 


corridor width of 50 feet. 
• Trail corridors should link to and be incorporated to neighborhood and community parks to 


provide a linear park system.  
• Trail corridors should link to regional trail systems.  
• Due to the shape, configuration, and potential for user noise in these parks, user impacts on 


adjoining neighbors should be considered. Fences or landscaping may be used to provide some 
privacy for neighbors, but the provision of these features also should consider user safety.  


• Paved pathways should be designed to accommodate maintenance and patrol vehicles.  
• The amount and type (on-street or off-street) of parking provided at trailheads will depend on 


facilities at the site and anticipated trail use.  


Features & Amenities to Consider 
• Paved pathways 
• Viewpoints 
• Seating areas 
• Picnic tables 







 


• Wayfinding signage 
• Trailhead or entry kiosk  
• Landscaped areas, ornamental plantings, turf areas 
• Maintained natural vegetation 
• Fences, landscaping, or other features to control access near adjoining residential areas 
• Parking at major trailheads  


Features & Amenities to Avoid 
• Active use facilities such as sport fields and paved courts (only in trail corridor areas) 


Natural Areas 
Description  
Natural areas may preserve or protect environmentally sensitive areas, such as wildlife habitats, stream 
and creek corridors, or unique and/or endangered plant species. Public access may be limited as these 
sites, white often include wetlands, steep hillsides, or other similar spaces. Some natural areas may be 
managed secondarily to provide passive recreation opportunities.  


Typical recreation user of natural areas: 


• Comes from throughout the city; 
• Arrives by auto, bicycle, or foot; 
• Uses a trail within the natural area; and  
• Visits the area for an extended time 


Site Selection & Development Guidelines 
• Site size should be based on natural resource needs. Acreage should be sufficient to preserve or 


protect the resource.  
• Emphasis for acquisition should be on lands offering unique features that have the potential to 


be lost to development. 
• An analysis should be made to determine if unique qualities and conditions exist to warrant 


acquisition.  
• Development and site improvements should be kept to a minimum, keeping the park’s emphasis 


on the natural environment, interpretive features, and educational facilities. 
• Natural open space areas should be managed and maintained for a sense of solitude, 


separation, or environmental protection.  
• Site use should be limited to the numbers and types of visitors the area can accommodate while 


still retaining its natural character and the intended level of solitude.  
• Where feasible, public access and use of these areas should be encouraged, but environmentally 


sensitive areas should be protected from overuse.  
• Off-street parking should be considered for larger natural areas if a trail is located within the 


site. The amount will depend upon the anticipated trail use. Otherwise, on-street parking should 
be provided.  


Features and Amenities to Consider 
• Interpretive signage 







 


• Small picnic shelter 
• Limited picnic areas 
• Trail and pathway system  
• Trailhead or entry kiosk 
• Viewpoints 
• Interpretive or education facilities  
• Portable or permanent restrooms (depending on facilities and anticipated amount of site use) 
• On-street or off-street parking (depending on anticipated amount of site use) 


Features and Amenities to Avoid 
• Depends on site 


Guidance for Developers 
Sustainable communities include parks and open spaces where residents and visitors can enjoy 
recreation, connect with nature, and gather with neighbors. Thanks to the foresight of and vision of 
community leaders, citizens, and land developers, Stoughton boasts an extensive park system. To 
continue with this standard, a parkland dedication is required for developments.  


The City depends on neighborhood and community parks to meet the recreational needs of its citizens. 
Land development should meet the needs of the residents. These classes of parks are dedicated when 
land is developed and are the basis of the sections below.  


Design and Review Process for City Parks 
The process described below is the typical sequence of reviews conducted with the City of Stoughton’s 
Director of Parks & Recreation and the consultant. This process encompasses the majority of projects 
and will serve as a general framework for providing direction regarding the specifics of the design and 
construction documents. The outline below is the basic format and can be adapted as needed for special 
case scenarios. Private sector development, renovation, or special use areas should follow this process 
to the closest extent possible. Other services and procedures may be required depending on the scope 
of the project.  


Nothing in this document shall be construed as a requirement or endorsement for the consultant to 
provide services for white they are not qualified or appropriately licensed. The consultant shall exercise 
their professional judgement regarding design specifics. All projects shall conform to local, state, and 
federal codes, laws, and ordinances.  


1. Scoping/Programming Meeting  
 
This meeting will occur during the scoping phase, and prior to the execution of a consultant’s 
conceptual plan for the development is completed. The Parks and Recreation Director will 
convey the needs outlined in the city’s Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan, city’s 
Comprehensive Plan, county’s Park and Open Space Plan, and other relevant plans. The City will 
also provide any available information regarding site selection criteria and the Site Evaluation 
Report.  
 


2. Site Selection Review  







 


 
The consultant will prepare the Site Evaluation Report for this meeting with the Parks and 
Recreation Director. The intent at this time will be to review possible site selections for the 
parkland within the development. These conceptual plans will be sketch quality, fairly abstract 
diagrams that demonstrate the location, arrangement, size and spacing of the park. The 
intention is to identify the opportunities and constraints of various layouts. Once a site is 
selected, it will need to be approved by the Parks & Recreation Committee.  
 


3. Park Master Plan Review  
 
The consultant will prepare schematic design drawings which will setup the preliminary 
arrangement of programmatic and physical components, including hardscape elements, 
accessibility, circulation, drainage, grades and slopes, planting scheme, furnishings, and play 
equipment. This is intended to be a collaborative process and based on the complexity of the 
project, there may be several iterations of schematic design solutions. The reviews may include 
sketch quality drawings or hardline drawings.  
 
Once a schematic design is resolved, the consultant shall prepare a final line drawing. If the 
project scope includes a public meeting, the consultant will prepare rendered presentation 
graphics. A budget work sheet with realistic cost estimates for any site improvements must be 
included with the plan. All Park Master Plans must be adopted by City Council. 
 


4. Design Development/30% & 60% Construction Documents  
 
The consultant will prepare a set of drawings that will create the framework for the final 
drawings and that start filling in the specifics of the design. A meeting will be held to review the 
progress of the 30% and 60% construction drawings, and will ascertain that the schedule and 
budget of the project is on track, the intent of the design is being followed, and any issues are 
being remedied.   


 


5. 90% Construction Documents  
The consultant will prepare and submit a set of construction drawings to the 90% complete 
stage. The drawings shall be prepared to a level that is considered biddable and buildable. A 
meeting will be held to review the submittal to ascertain that all details and specifications 
required are included in the drawings. This will allow the City to identify any particulars that 
need clarification or correction.  
 
A preliminary cost estimate shall also be prepared by the consultant at this stage.  
 
If the project will be publicly bid, the consultant shall prepare and submit a contract manual and 
associated bidding documents to the Parks and Recreation Director.  
  


6. Final Documents for Construction Documents and Pricing/Bidding  


Commented [DG1]: The planning process for new parks 
has not had approved Master Plan reports in the past. They 
have been conceptual plans without City Council approval. 


Commented [DG2]: This is needed and was not done 
when Nordic Ridge Park was developed.  


Commented [DG3]:  







 


After approval of the 90% plans, specifications and estimate, the consultant will prepare and 
submit final construction documents.  


 
The consultant will coordinate the distribution of plan sets, participate in the pre-bid meeting, 
review the bids, prepare a bid tabulation, and a recommendation of award, and verify the 
contract and agreement documents.  
 


7. Pre-Construction Meeting  
 
Prior to the start of construction, all parties will meet to review the specifics of the construction 
process including the schedule for construction.  


 
 
Site Evaluation Report 
Once a site within a development is selected by the developer for the parkland dedication, the 
developer should prepare a site evaluation report. The report shall include and follow the following 
format: 


1. Title Page  
 


2. Executive Summary  


The executive summary summarizes the type and size of the planned park; briefly describes the 
sites; Indicated which site was selected and the rationale for choosing the selected site.  


3. Site Selection Process 


Explains the site selection criteria and the criteria rating and weighting schemes. Include the 
following graphics in this section: 


o Context map showing site(s) and its immediate surroundings 
o Location map showing all of the sites that were considered and key landmarks or 


reference points such as major streets 
o Aerial photography of each site 
o Photographic panoramas  
o Site topographic map  


 
4. Comparative Evaluation of Candidate Sites 


Describe the strengths and weaknesses of each individual site. Include the following graphics: 


o Site evaluation matrix 
o Tabulated data summarizing the individual site evaluations allowing for comparison 


among the alternative sites 
 


5. Conclusion  







 


Briefly summarize the site selected, process used, and determination.  


6. References 


Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting  
 Tis site selection process is used for the continuing acquisition of open space for new parks and public 
recreation areas. 


Minimum Criteria  
All sites must meet all of the “base” or threshold criteria listed below to be considered for further 
evaluation. This step ensures the sites meet at least the minimum standards for: 


Site Size 


The minimum land dedication must provide 90% of the land required per the parkland dedication 
requirement. Trail corridors are counted towards the parkland dedication requirement. Storm water 
retention ponds located within a park do not count towards the land dedication.  


Slopes 


Land dedicated for parkland shall have areas with slopes of 5% or less in 50% of the parkland for a 
neighborhood park and 25% of the parkland for a community park. Land can be graded by the developer 
to provide less slope.  


Contiguous Land  


Land shall be dedicated in a contiguous parcel. An exception to this is if the development is fragmented 
by an arterial street, highway, or railroad.  


Frontage  


Should be fronted on three sides and/or 75% of border by streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped 
land with no rear residential lots adjacent to the park.  


Existing Conditions  


The site shall not be encumbered by overhead utility lines, easements of any type, unstable soils, 
floodplains, wetlands, or toxic conditions which may limit the opportunity for park and recreation 
development.  


Pedestrian and Bikeway Connectivity  


Parks and other major points of interests such as schools should be connected by an off-road trail 
corridor. The City’s Comprehensive Outdoor Recreation Plan conceptually outlines trail routes and 
should be taken into consideration when planning routes. Regional trail connections shall be protected 
and be incorporated into the park layout when necessary. The regional trail map can be found in Dane 
County’s Parks & Open Space Plan.   


 
Base Criteria  
Dedication Percent (20 Points) 


Commented [DG4]: This will help staff and alderpersons 
judge parkland dedication for developments.  


Commented [DG5]: What is the acceptable amount? 
Developers may need some flexibility for their development 
to work and they are required to pay the park fee in lieu of.  


Commented [DG6]: Slopes of 5% or less allow for ADA 
accessibility which is needed for programmed features of 
the park such as restrooms, playgrounds, and sport courts.  


Commented [DG7]: I changed the wording for this too.  







 


90 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 1 point  


91-99 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 7 points 


100 percent of parkland dedication is fulfilled = 20 points 


 


Slopes (15 points)  


Slopes of 5% or less in 50% of the parkland for a neighborhood park and 25% of the parkland for a 
community park are met = 15 points 


Frontages (20 points) 


75% of frontage border are public streets, public areas, and/or undeveloped land with no rear 
residential lots adjacent to the park = 20 points  


 


Connectivity (15 points) 


Park is connected to other parks with off-road trail = 1 point 


Park is connected with 50-75-foot-wide off-road trail corridor with vegetation = 7 points 


Park is connected with a 75+ foot wide off-road trail corridor with vegetation = 15 points  


 


Bonus Criteria 
Park size is over 10 acres = 5 points 


Park can be expanded with future development = 5 points  


Historical or cultural resources on-site = 10 points 


Relatively undisturbed sites supporting significant and diverse plant and wildlife habitat = 10 points 


Waterfront access = 5 points  


Healthy, established, mature, and non-invasive trees = 5 points   


Land dedication is over the parkland dedication requirement by 10% = 5 points  


 


 


 


Commented [DG8]: This will need to be discussed and 
refined 







Park Design Guideline Point Test


Park Base Points Bonus Points Total Points
Slopes Frontages Park Size  Over 10 acres Historical/Cultural Resources Significant & Diverse Habitat Waterfront Access Healthy, Established, Mature, & Non‐Invasive Trees Park is Expandable Land Dedication Over 10%


20 (100%) 7 (91‐99%)  1 (90%) 15 20 1 (Off‐Road Trail) 7 (50‐75 Foot Corridor) 15 (75+ Foot Trail Corridor) 5 10 10 5 5 5 5 70 Max 40 Max 110 Max
Bjoin 20 0 0 15 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 55 5 60 Land was d
Dunkirk 20 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 35 5 40
East Side 20 0 0 15 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 0 0 55 5 60
Lowell 20 0 0 15 20 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 5 5 0 55 15 70
Nordic Ridge 20 0 0 15 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36 0 36
Norse 20 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 35 0 35
Schefelker 20 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 5 0 10 0 5 0 0 35 20 55
Veterans 20 0 0 0 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 5 5 0 0 40 10 50
Virgin Lake 20 0 0 15 0 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 50 0 50
Westview Ridge 20 0 0 15 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 35 0 35
51 West (East) 20 0 0 15 20 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 62 0 62
51 West (West) 20 0 0 15 0 0 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 42 0 42
KPW 20 0 0 15 20 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 5 5 0 56 15 71
Stonecrest 20 0 0 15 20 1 0 0 5 0 0 0 5 0 0 56 10 66
Magnolia Meadows 20 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 10 0 5 0 5 21 20 41


Dedication Percent Connectivity
Base Criteria  Bonus Criteria







onated





		Park Design Guidelines

		Overview

		Purpose

		Mission Statement

		Goals



		General Planning and Design Policies

		Site Selection and Planning Principles

		Park Design and Development Guidelines

		Community Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Neighborhood Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Mini Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Special-Use Parks

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Trail Corridors & Greenways

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features & Amenities to Consider

		Features & Amenities to Avoid



		Natural Areas

		Description

		Site Selection & Development Guidelines

		Features and Amenities to Consider

		Features and Amenities to Avoid





		Guidance for Developers

		Design and Review Process for City Parks

		Site Evaluation Report

		Site Selection Criteria Rating and Weighting

		Minimum Criteria

		Base Criteria

		Bonus Criteria







		Point Test






 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA  
Notice is hereby given that the Parks and Recreation Committee of the City of Stoughton, 
Wisconsin will hold a regular or special meeting as indicated on the date, time and location 
given below. 


 


Meeting of the: 
Date /Time: 
Location: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Members: 
 
 
CC:   


PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 
Tuesday, August 16, 2022 at 6:00 pm 
This is a hybrid meeting with the option of meeting virtually and in-person. Please 
use the information below to attend:  
 
In-Person Option:  
 
Stoughton Council Chambers (321 S. Fourth Street) 
 
Virtual Option: 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86523111877?pwd=b1lWK1lmZm9TOHRRd2pqSU11K0
xuZz09  
 
Meeting ID: 865 2311 1877 
Passcode: 442713 
One tap mobile 
+16469313860,,86523111877#,,,,*442713# US 
+19292056099,,86523111877#,,,,*442713# US (New York) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 646 931 3860 US 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 309 205 3325 US 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 386 347 5053 US 
        +1 564 217 2000 US 
 


   
Regina Hirsch, Phil Caravello, Frank Raff, Joyce Tikalsky, Jim Brandt, Ethan Scheiwe,  
Tim Swadley 


 
Attorney Matt Dregne, Department Heads, Stoughton Newspapers,  
Deb Waterstone, Sue Strandlie , Sarah Monette, Jon Lewis, Bob Diebel, Council 
Members 
 
 
  
 
 
 


 
Item #   CALL TO ORDER 
1   Call to Order    



https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86523111877?pwd=b1lWK1lmZm9TOHRRd2pqSU11K0xuZz09

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86523111877?pwd=b1lWK1lmZm9TOHRRd2pqSU11K0xuZz09





 
2 Approval of Minutes from July 19, 2022 
 
3 Communication   
 Director’s Report  
 2023-27 Work Plan 
 
Item #   OLD BUSINESS     
4   Park Design Guidelines (Discussion & Action) 
    
Item #   NEW BUSINESS      
5 Mandt Park Utility License (Discussion & Action) 
 
6   Future Agenda Items 
   Mandt Park Utility License 


Bike Federation Logo Use  
 
Item #   ADJOURNMENT  





